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YAMHILL COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

Thursday, March 22, 2018  7:00 p.m. 

Kent Taylor Civic Hall 

200 NE Second Street 

McMinnville, Oregon 97128 

 

Roll Call: Michael Sherwood, Daryl Garrettson, Marla Robison, Marjorie Ehry, Dan Armstrong, 

John Abrams, Brett Veatch, Matt Dunckel Absent: Alan Halstead Staff: Stephanie Armstrong, 

Ken Friday, Todd Sadlo, Stephanie Curran 

 

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

DOCKET NO.:   G-01-17 

          REQUEST:   To consider amendments to the Yamhill County Zoning 

Ordinance to prohibit the siting of commercial solar 

generation facilities on a tract that contains 

predominantly Class I through Class IV soils. This 

restriction would not prohibit solar projects to serve 

individual properties for personal use.  In other words, 

for purposes of this amendment, a commercial solar 

power generation facility does not include a net metering 

project established consistent with ORS 757.300 and 

OAR chapter 860, division 39 or a Feed-in-Tariff project 

established consistent with ORS 757.365 and OAR 

chapter 860, division 84. The amendment would apply to 

properties regulated by Section 402, Exclusive Farm use 

District (EF-20, EF-40 and EF-80) and Section 403, 

Agriculture/Forestry Large Holding District (AF-20, AF-

40 and AF-80) of the Yamhill County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

APPLICANT:    Yamhill County 

 

          REVIEW CRITERIA:  OAR 660-033-0130(38) and Sections 402, 403 and 1207 of 

the Yamhill County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Commissioner Armstrong opened the public hearing. 

Ken Friday passed out information requested by commissioners last week (map of substations). 

Legal counsel, Todd Sadlo, stated there is a 30% tax credit for solar facilities. 

Susan Meredith: 14100 SW McCabe Chapel Rd, McMinnville, OR 97128:  Gave oral testimony 

supporting amendment and left written testimony. Wants to make sure everyone present at the 

hearing completely understand the intent of the proposed ordinance, that it pertains to 

commercial solar facilities and not to personal use on one’s own property. No questions from 

commissioners. 

Nick Giannettino: 1151 SW Mill St, Sheridan, OR 97378: Gave oral testimony supporting the 

amendment and left written testimony.  There are more suitable places to station these 

commercial solar facilities such as non-productive lands, rooftops, unused commercial sites, 

utility corridors and other area. He requested an immediate moratorium on the acceptance and 
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processing of any applications for commercial solar power generating facilities on farmland in 

order to evaluate the individual and cumulative effects on farmland such as fragmentation of 

farmland in maintaining the agricultural economy and wildlife habitat, the quality of life of rural 

residents, adjacent property values, visual resources and viewsheds, and the irreversible effects 

from loss of productivity from farmlands for the service life of these installations. He also 

requested that regardless of the decision on the proposed amendment county officials devote 

additional consideration and critical review focused on two portions of the Site Design Review 

for any new Commercial solar applications, specifically YCZO 1101.02 and 1202.02(D). No 

questions from Commissioners.  

BJ Matthews: 19643 NW Goodrich Rd, Yamhill, OR 97148: Gave oral testimony against 

amendment. Not all solar is bad. When they are placed in a way where turf can grow under it can 

be beautiful. I read the testimony submitted by Yamhill County residents. Most of the ones I read 

that are opposed to the amendment are brief and mainly state they don’t like the way they look. 

Before you assume that all commercial solar facilities can be replaced by roof top panels, has 

any one done the math? Will the structures hold, what is the cost, how many roofs are there, are 

they facing the right direction, etc.? I noticed the pros and cons were from opposite sides of the 

county. We don’t want a county divided. No questions from commissioners. 

Robert Woodcock: 32800 SW Savage Rd, Sheridan, OR 97378: Gave oral testimony against the 

amendment. I hate to give up any opportunity to do something on my farm that I have been 

farming for over 40 years. I am getting close to retirement age, and this solar thing might give 

me a fixed income I can look forward to in retirement. No questions from commissioners. 

Walter Scott: 23540 Red Prairie Rd, Sheridan, OR 97378: gave oral testimony against 

amendment.  There is no scientific evidence that solar farms are detrimental to the environment. 

Many solar farms leave turf under the panels which attracts pollinators.  I think this is a case of 

“not in my back yard”. I have a solution, 7 foot arbor vitas, that will block the view. There are 

also unseen consequential financial impacts/consequences. I’ve had my farm for 27 years; it was 

not farmable when I purchased it, it is now. I’m asking you to keep current policy in place. 

Commissioner Dunckel: I’ve been trying to find out how much power these plants produce, I 

think they are more of schemes for getting tax break. Can you enlighten me on how much power 

is produced? 

Mr. Scott: I cannot, but if it is a tax break, that is just the American way. 

Emilie Molloy:  29870 Mill Creek Rd, Sheridan, OR 97378: Gave oral testimony supporting the 

amendment. I suggest you research the companies that present these solar farms, and make them 

comply with the conditions in their approval. I have the 12 acre farm right across from my front 

yard, it is not setback from the road and they did not meet all conditions of approval. 

Commissioner Armstrong: These are conditionally approved; you should get a copy of this from 

the planning director and let him know if they are not meeting them.  

Ken Friday: We are aware of the situation and have sent different people out 5 times and there is 

nothing we can do about what is going on out there.  
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Kevin Green: 806 E Main St, Hillsboro, OR 97128: Gave oral testimony supporting amendment. 

I’m a small wine maker and buy grapes from two vineyards in Yamhill County. Also I am a 

Century farmer. I think we should keep these farm lands as they were, important to pass this on 

to young farmers. I myself have solar panels for personal use, but we need to look at where we 

site these commercial facilities. 

Commissioner Abrams: Do you know the soil type of the grapes you source out of Yamhill 

County? 

Mr. Green: Not off the top of my head. I can say from grape grower’s perspective, the 

microclimates produced by solar panels does affect the crop. As a buyer, I would be concerned. 

He gave an example from the Rhone Valley in France and stated grapes we grow in the 

Willamette Valley would most likely have the same affect. 

Commissioner Ehry: Your parents had a century farm? 

Mr. Green: No, but my great-grandfather did. 

Commissioner Ehry: Is it the same land you are on now? 

Mr. Green: it is not, 

Commissioner Ehry: Did you grow up on a farm? 

Mr. Green: No, my parents did. My uncle could have taken it over but he didn’t see a future in it. 

I think it’s pretty clear that if we don’t show an example today to young people now, they won’t 

see a path forward. 

Katherine Jernstedt, president of Friends of Yamhill County and Century farm owner and 

operator, 8156 Mineral Springs Rd, Carlton: Gave oral testimony supporting amendment. My 

father made it clear to us that Oregon’s land use system with the restrictions on development and 

the accompanying property tax consideration for agricultural operation allowed him to keep the 

farm in tact through tough times. FOYC supports renewable energy but concerned about 

converting high value farm land to industrial uses.  Agriculture is foundational to the Yamhill 

County economy and employment. The acreage of active cultivation is dropping every year. We 

need to arrest this depletion of the valuable resource. Every dollar spent on directly on farming is 

estimated to have $5 of impact in the community. This is in contrast to a commercial solar 

project which will provide and passive income to the lease only short term employment while the 

project is being constructed.   The staff report provides a strong discussion of the comprehensive 

plan, alternates available for siting solar facilities and the significance of quality soil to the local 

agriculture economy. It also makes clear that the proposed amendment is not an outright ban; it 

is protection of high value farmland. Friends of Yamhill County are in support of this 

amendment.  

Commissioner Garretson: Have FOYC figured out why these arrays are all being proposed in 

PGE territory? 

Ms. Jernstedt: I have heard that there are more substations and points of entry in PGE territory. 
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Barbara Boyer married to 4
th

 generation farmer and here on behalf of the Yamhill County Soil 

and Water Conservation District, 12255 Boyer Rd, McMinnville, OR 97128. Gave oral 

testimony supporting amendment. We recommend protecting high value farmland, as stated in 

goal 2 of the Yamhill County Comprehensive Use Plan. No questions from commissioners. 

Kris Bledsoe, 18695 SE Upper Island Rd, Dayton, OR 97114: Gave oral testimony supporting 

the amendment. What makes a gravel pit different then a solar array? We need to protect our 

high value farmland. There are other places these can be located other than prime farmland. 

Commissioner Sherwood: What would you say would be the number one reason for solar 

companies to look at farmland for their arrays? 

Ms. Bledsoe: Because these companies are leasing the land, it is really cheap compared to 

owning the land. We need to look at straight out economic viability.  

Commissioner Sherwood: Do you think access plays a part in this? 

Ms. Bledsoe: I am not sure, but look at the nurseries; they grow plants in pots on a tarp on the 

ground. We should look at all of these venues that take up valuable farmland. 

Commissioner Ehry: Aggregate from gravel mining is a natural resource, I don’t know if we 

would classify solar as such. 

Shannon Gustafson, 2205 Oak Dr, Newberg, OR 97132: Gave oral testimony in support of 

amendment. I am in support of this proposal; I am also in the wine industry. We need to preserve 

these lands for future generations. Commercial solar facilities damage farm lands by causing 

erosion and compacting soils. Furthermore the use of herbicides could affect neighboring farm 

lands and cause permanent damage. 

Ron Penrose: 13020 NE Brookside Ln, Carlton, OR 97111: Gave written testimony in opposition 

of amendment that was read by chair Armstrong. “I oppose the amendment for the following 

reasons: 1) It’s private property and as a citizen I have the right to use the property within the 

law. 2) If your concern is soil, you’re inconsistent with the application. I could build a horse 

arena on the same soil. You are not restricting non-farming activities. 3) With artificial limits on 

use, it decreases the potential of revenue and decreases the value of our properties. 4) Does not 

allow me to switch from a crop to this revenue stream as age and health dictate. 5) Does not 

allow me to split the functionality of the property for areas that are more difficult to farm such as 

sloped acres. 5) As our forefathers debated private property rights, I believe the congressional 

record would indicate that less restriction was the purpose. 

Ximena Orrego: 20501 Russell Creek Rd, Yamhill, OR 97148: Gave oral testimony supporting 

the amendment. I want to verbally confirm that my husband and I are in favor of the amendment 

to restrict solar farms on high value agricultural lands. Referred to a two month old study that 

states solar panels destroy solar bacteria. PGE has already met its renewable energy requirements 

for the next 12 years (taken from PGE’s info and Oregonian). I think this ordinance should also 

state that no solar farms allowed in AVA land. No question from the commissioners. 
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Sara Sayles, lawyer with Ball Janik on behalf of Cypress Creek Renewables, 101 SW Main, Ste. 

1100, Portland, 97204: Gave oral testimony in opposition of amendment. I read all the 

comments, many farmers that provided testimony were opposed to this ban on solar projects. But 

solar farms do not impact the ability to farm on adjacent lands. The solar farms have to follow 

existing substation that are already located in this county. The people who are opposed to big 

solar farms do not offer any viable alternatives. And there are already state regulations in place 

to limit the scope of these. If you prohibit solar on class 1-4 soils, you basically prohibit it on all 

agriculture land in Yamhill County. How much capacity the grid has for new projects is 

proprietary to PGE; however we would be happy to get it for you at our expense. We can get you 

good information as to how much land could actually be devoted to solar to give the commission 

more guidance as to what might actually happen if this amendment were to be adopted as it 

stands or if something can be more carefully crafted. Examples: you could do is change zoning 

regulations around substation or limit number of solar farms in Yamhill County. My point is this 

hearing should be the starting point of a conversation. At minimum we request the commission 

continue the hearing. 

Commissioner Garretson: Do you know average amount per paid per acre to lease this land? 

Ms. Sayles: I don’t know. 

Commissioner Garretson: Do you know of any solar sited outside of PGE array?  

Ms. Sayles: Not that I am aware of.  

Commissioner Garretson: Why?     

Ms. Sayles: Dollars and cents. 

Commissioner Abrams:  Is the PGE thing driven by the Clean Energy legislation?  

Ms. Sayles: I’m not sure it is the driving factor but it is a factor.  

Commissioner Abrams: Do you know the amount of dust and pollen kicked up by farming 

operations? This is a right to farm state.  

Ms. Sayles: This would not affect ability to farm.  

Commissioner Abrams: I’m wondering if this will be a point of contention later.  

Ms. Salyes: I believe the maintenance of panels is calculated into the cost of the project by solar 

facilities up front. 

Sid Freidman, 14286 NW Old Moores Valley Rd, Yamhill, OR 97148: Gave oral testimony 

supporting amendment. My wife and I support amendment. We have been contacted by many 

companies who want to lease our land. Our opposition has nothing to do with the ascetics of this 

project, it is solely about protecting the agriculture land from being converted to solar industrial 

non-farm use. As shown in the planning department report, there are many other places in 

Yamhill County that can be used for solar instead of prime farmland. When we were recently in 

California we saw a parking lot with solar panels above it that cars parked underneath. We 
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cannot sacrifice our farmlands because it is cheaper then siting these panels elsewhere. Last 

week Marion County just prohibited solar arrays on farm ground. The opposition states these 

arrays create jobs, but as soon as they are finished being built, they are unmanned. This is not a 

ban on solar arrays in Yamhill County; it is a restriction of them being placed on valuable farm 

land. 

Commissioner Abrams: Would you agree that there are some class 3 and 4 that are not high 

value? 

Mr. Friedman: There are some by virtue of soil type that are not, but also some that are 

considered high value because they are in the AVA.  

Commissioner Garrett: Did the offers you received from solar companies contain a price tag?  

Mr. Friedman: They said up to $1000/acre. You could get about what you would make in a year 

growing grass seed without having to do the work. 

Charles Cogashaw: 2726 NE 11
th

 Ave, Portland, OR 97212: Gave oral testimony opposed to the 

amendment. I worked in solar energy for 10 years. I’m on the board of OSEIA, Oregon Solar 

Energy Industries Association. I am talking community solar; community solar is where the 

energy goes into the grid and not necessarily used nearby. Great for renters and those who don’t 

own property who can’t host their own system. Community solar offers an opportunity for 

Yamhill to expand and diversify its economy while providing value to its residents. Customers 

can own an interest in the project and secure credits on their electricity bill associated with that 

interest. This differs from traditional solar that is either intended to serve one beneficiary or is 

simply an agreement between a developer and utility. Oregon has been working on developing a 

community solar program for several years. Yamhill County has an opportunity to participate in 

that program, but would be prevented if the proposed amendments are approved. Not all projects 

will be located in Yamhill County, as PGE works in 7 counties, but some will. I recommend not 

making a hasty decision, explore other options.  

Commissioner Dunckel: As far as commercial power, why would you site a solar project in 

Western Oregon over Eastern Oregon? 

Mr. Cogashaw: No one would do it if it weren’t economically feasible, solar is getting cheaper.  

Commissioner Abrams: How long is the full lease with the owner? 

Mr. Cogashaw: I’m not sure, but community solar would apply credit to customer’s bill for 20 

years. 

Commissioner Abrams: Are you aware of any arrays that have been decommissioned? 

Mr. Cogashaw: No, but the industry is relatively new. 

Commissioner Ehry: Where is the solar energy being generated in Yamhill County going to be 

used? 
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Mr. Cogashaw: I don’t know, but if the project is close to a distribution system then it will likely 

be used close to home. But it will go wherever the money is. 

Amy Berg Pickett on behalf of Cypress Creek Renewables: 857 SE Kristin Way, Madras, OR, 

97759: Gave oral testimony in opposition of amendment. Solar industry has done a disservice to 

the farming community by the way we have advertised making it look like projects can be sited 

everywhere, but this is how we come into contact with landowners. We need to be as close to a 

PGE substation as possible. The larger the solar farm, the farther it can be from a substation. 

When picking a site we first find a substation, then look at the land around and consider wildlife 

such as endangered species, and toxins in soil which would make reclamation at the end of the 

project difficult. Why are they in PGE territory? Because the utility companies are mandated by 

law to buy a certain amount of renewable energy. PGE is usually located in highly populated 

areas. 

Commissioner Robison: Are you just looking at farmland that is flat, or are you looking 

elsewhere such as hilly areas?  

Ms. Berg Pickett: We look at soil maps when we are doing our research and we have to site our 

arrays on the least productive area on the farm. We have teams of people across the industry 

looking everywhere to determine where we can put our solar arrays. 

Commissioner Robison: So you are not looking at the flatter land because it is easier? 

Ms. Berg Pickett: The driving factor is the location in relation to substations. 

Commissioner Garretson: Does the 12 acre site pay for itself by the power generated in 30 years? 

Amy: there are many factors…. 

Commissioner Garretson, it is a yes or no question.  

Ms. Berg Pickett: It is a large upfront investment but it does eventually pay for itself because of 

our long term contract with the utility. 

Commissioner Dunckel: Why do think our legislature does not consider hydro renewable? 

Ms. Berg Pickett: I cannot speak for the legislature, and I don’t work in policy as much as some 

of the others I know. It might be considered non-renewable because you’re changing an entire 

ecosystem and the dynamics. 

Jared Necamp, Cypress Creek Renewables, 2660 NE Highway 240 #31, Bend, OR, 97701: Gave 

oral testimony in opposition of amendment. In photovoltaic only 15 percent of power generated 

goes back into grid. There are already factors in Yamhill County that limit commercial solar 

plants. 

Commissioner Abrams: Are you involved with the on-site establishments? Our part of the valley 

has highly fertile soil due to its ability to drain. Can your sites work on wetter parcels of ground? 

Mr. Necamp: I don’t know, but we have a team of environmental engineers that would deal with 

that. It is all site specific.  
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Nate Butler, Forefront Power, 100 Montgomery St #725, San Francisco, CA 94104: Gave oral 

testimony in opposition of amendment. The benefits are local and some class 1-4 soils are not 

easily or economically farmed. The number of projects will be limited by electrical 

infrastructures; total potential is less than 1% of farmland in Yamhill County. The proposed 

ordinance takes away judgement from all parties. Marion County’s wording on the recent solar 

hearing was no solar arrays on farm land that can be farmed. They put on a moratorium on solar 

but they are establishing work groups and are going to meet again in October. We can work 

together to develop rules that preserve farmland while still generating benefits for Yamhill 

County. Why do we want to site these in Yamhill County? PGE domain traces the Willamette 

Valley, which is where the customers are. None of this power is going to California.  

Commissioner Armstrong: Is electricity tangible? 

Mr. Butler: It is dictated by physics, so it goes towards the load. If the load is here, it will go 

towards the load. We cannot tell an electron where to go. 

Commissioner Armstrong: How can you say power generated in Yamhill County stays in 

Yamhill County? 

Nick: A 12 acres solar project is at the distribution level of the grid. That means it is on the load 

side of substations. To send power to California, it has to be on the transmission level and our 

projects are not that large. 

Mason Ralph, I have been an Oregon resident for 6 years now, I am not a Yamhill County 

resident: Gave oral testimony in opposition of amendment. Solar can be a net benefit, especially 

if you use co-pollinators underneath the panels. There is a new study called agri-voltaics that is 

being looked at. How long will this be productive farm land with global climate change?  

Commissioner Dunckel: I when generating electricity, the closer to the population centers and 

infra structure the better, but in this area we have hydro-electric power and that is about as cheap 

as you can get. So why would we want to purchase more expensive power?  

Mr. Ralph:  state regulatory body requires all new generating facilities provide electricity at a 

cheaper price then is what is already available, so it would be less expensive electricity. 

Secondly, the mix of electricity you are receiving here is predominately fossil fuel based, which 

has negative effects on environment and climate.  

Kellene Payne: 6170 NE Old McMinnville Highway, Carlton, OR 97111: Gave oral testimony in 

opposition of the amendment. We live on a century farm; I am in opposition of this proposition. 

We have a small solar array on our farm for 7 years. We sell our energy to PGE and this helps 

offset the bills. Farming is labor intensive and not only do our kids not want to farm, we are 

having a hard time finding reliable help, even paying decent wages and benefits. We financed the 

panels ourselves; pig farming uses a lot of electricity. We netted $1100 this year on selling solar 

back to the grid. This is only the 2
nd

 year we have made a profit. So it is something that is viable 

in our area. It would benefit all of us to become more sustainable. To look at the whole picture, it 

seems we are over concerned with this issue. There are already many restrictions that will 

naturally limit the placement of solar arrays. 
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Commissioner Dunckel: So you are comparing your personal site with the commercial sites? 

Mrs. Payne: Yes, because they are limited to 12 acres. 

Commissioner Dunckel: But you financed it on your own? 

Mrs. Payne: Yes and we get depreciation tax credit as well. 

Casey Kulla, 18705 SE Upper Island Rd, Dayton, OR, 97114: Gave oral testimony in opposition 

of the amendment. I farm on Grand Island and farm class 1 and 2 soils. I oppose this ordinance 

because I don’t think we need a ban to get what we want. I don’t think it is positive for the 

county to put a ban on this. I feel it restricts what farmers can do on their land.  

Commissioner Garretson: there are already certain things famers cannot do on their land already 

under the zoning ordinance, and a commercial solar array is an exception.  

Mr. Kulla: I trust the Planning Director to provide conditions of approval that will protect 

farmland into the future.  

Morgan McLaughlin, 13120 Princeton Ct, Lake Oswego, OR 97226: Gave oral testimony. I am 

Exec Director of Willamette Valley wine growing association. I did not plan to testify, but after 

listening tonight I have more questions about solar now. I am surprised that no one from the solar 

industry has come to educate the wine growing industry. 

No question from the commissioners. 

Jane Baer, 29740 SW Mill Creek Rd, Sheridan, OR 97378: Gave oral testimony in support of the 

amendment. I submitted written testimony, I support this amendment. It will limit solar on high 

value land, but allow solar for individual use. It is not a perfect solution, but it is a start. I live 

across the street from Mill Creek Solar facility. The soil has been compacted; the cement pilings 

have been driven in the ground 10-12 feet. It is a fully industrial site. Since the panels have been 

installed we notice there could well be a microclimate being created around these panels. In the 

mornings there are steam coming off the panels but not off of the surrounding areas. There are 

more rodents because the natural predators are unable to get onto the land due to fencing, or have 

moved because of the solar panels. We cannot get answers form Cypress Creek Renewables 

anymore, the site has changed ownership. That gives us questions on the bonding issues. It is 

something to consider. Climate change is happening but we are still in a climate where we can 

produce crops. 

Commissioner Armstrong closed public hearing: We will break until 10:21 pm, and then hear the 

staff report and vote. 

Ken Friday gave the staff recommendation: Solar facilities are not dependent on class 1-4 soils 

but agriculture is. I thought of limiting it to class 1-3 soils, like Commissioner Abrams 

suggested, but here are a lot of vineyards on class 4, and it is in line with our comprehensive 

policy that states we are to preserve Class 1-4 soils. 

Deliberation: 
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Commissioner Veatch: I don’t know how I am going to vote. In a visceral sense I don’t like the 

way they look, and I don’t want them taking up good ground, but there are laws in place to limit 

them. But they allow a farmer another option for cash flow in a varying market. Not all soils are 

created equal. As far as taking land out of use, it is true, but maybe the rest of the ground is more 

productive. There is a better technology and farming methodology coming into practice all the 

time. Also, solar technology is changing as well. Maybe we can split the baby in half and just 

prohibit on class 1 and 2 soils, limit the number of facilities around substations or put a total 

limit of total number in the county. 

Commissioner Sherwood: I read all the letters submitted, 68 were for and 23 were against. Most 

of the 23 said a landowner has a right to determine the use of their property. 5 were 

advertisements from solar companies. On the negative, the construction is the only time these 

facilities provide jobs because they are unmanned. They are ugly, and the solar companies are 

the only ones really making money off these ventures. Once they are here, they are here to stay. I 

am leaning toward approving the amendment. 

Commissioner Abrams: I talked to Ken Friday about amending the amendment. Like it or not the 

state is mandating we use “renewable” energy. I don’t look at these as permanent structures. I 

think the land is easier to reclaim then the land out at Monrovia Nursery. Solar is not going to 

compete with the wineries. Not all soils are equal. I would be in favor of amending the proposal 

to removing class 4 and maybe class 3 soils. 

Commissioner Dunckel: I am sympathetic with the farmers, but it is really just a transfer of 

burden of payment from the solar company to the rate payer. My objection is not with the 

facilities themselves, it is with the burden on the tax payers. In this area I believe these arrays are 

not to produce power but to satisfy state requirements on renewable energy usage. 

Commissioner Armstrong: It is seductive to think solar panels are the green thing to do, but it is 

artificial because it is government mandated. I think solar technology is going to advance, and I 

hate to see us sequester land for 20-30 years for the purpose of huge solar arrays. This is a cute 

little town and if you look at it, a lot of the growth is due to the wine industry and we have heard 

from them that it affects them.  

Commissioner Garretson: I think most of the Commissioners that are waffling on the idea, voted 

against the last solar farm application we received. I voted for it because of the way the 

ordinance was structured, we didn’t have a choice. We’ve got a lot of testimony that says they’ll 

put it on the least productive portion of the land, but there in nothing our ordinance that requires 

it to go on the least productive parcel.  If you look back at all the applications we’ve received, 

several of them were just taken out of production. It was actually good land but because you 

could farm the rest of the land around it, it was stuck in a certain corner. I still can’t get over the 

economic, which I have yet to get a straight answer. This is one of the worst areas in Oregon for 

solar power as far as efficiency goes, yet PGE is putting in 12 acre sites here. What is driving 

this? Is it the 30 % tax credit, are there other tax credits, are they selling it? These 12 acres sites 

are not for altruistic purposes, this is a market driven by economic causes. Our soil is a resource 

in Yamhill County. I support the amendment. 
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Commissioner Robison: It seems like half the people are for and half against. I am leaning 

toward letting them put solar on Class 3 and 4 soils. We could the limited number of solar farms 

in the county. The topography of the land is an issue. I don’t see why you have to put them on 

the good farm land. I think I will end up opposing the amendment because I think we need to do 

more work on it. I’m not convinced doing an amendment is the right thing to do. 

Commissioner Garretson: You know we have approved 7 and there are 7 more in the hopper, so 

we are up to 14. 

Commissioner Robison: we only have so many grids. 

Commissioner Garretson: they testified you can only do two or three, but we already have one 

substation that has four and another that has two and has two more pending. 4 times 7 is 28. 

Commissioner Robison: you make a point but I am still not convinced this is the way to do it but 

I don’t have a better idea at the moment. 

Commission Ehry: I think we are all in favor of solar power. There needs to be a place and a 

time for these things to be put up. I understand the plight of the farmer and people who have 

spoken here tonight. I am not real excited about banning anything. The soil class thing is really 

an option. When I’ve asked where the power was going, I was told California. This is in 30 

years, I don’t think I will be around to check on their plant to make sure it is remediated. 

Commissioner Armstrong: We have banned things before, this is an industrial use. You can put 

these panels elsewhere that aren’t productive soils. 

Commissioner Garretson: You notice they are all LLCs; there is no personal guarantee on it. 

Commissioner Ehry: Right, I’m not sure we can tell if they will be taken care. 

Commissioner Armstrong: on the issue of banning things, we ban a lot of stuff already. You 

can’t have a dump on your land; you can’t lease it for a car lot. This is an industrial use. I don’t 

think we are hurting people too much by saying you can’t have this industrial site just because it 

will provide your retirement. They used to sell off 20 acres for their retirement. 

Commissioner Ehry: You can’t even do that anymore. 

Commissioner Armstrong: And that is why we like living here. 

Commissioner Dunckel: to staff: you could still go through an exception process to get a facility 

on class 1 – 2 soils?  

Ken Friday: Yes, you could still apply for an exception.  

Commissioner Ehry: How problematic is that? 

Ken Friday: it would be problematic. 

Commissioner Ehry: is there some way we could look at a case and really check the soils, better 

than we have been doing? 
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Ken Friday: We have this happen all the time, they have to hire a certified soil scientist to see if 

the soils are correct and then submit a report to the state.  

Commissioner Dunckel: if this passed, it would no longer be listed as a conditional use? 

Ken Friday: You would have to take an exception to it, and he read the proposed amended 

ordinance. 

Commissioner Robison: what is this about Marion County? 

Ken Friday: they put a moratorium and are forming work groups to study and will reconvene in 

October. 

Commissioner Robison: I think this is a good idea. 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Garretson recommend approval of the proposed ordinance amendment, 

Commissioner Dunckel seconded. Approved 5-3 (Commissioners Robison, Veatch, and Abrams 

opposed) 

Adjourned at 10:55 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 


